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   Forward-Looking Statements. Statements made in this report that are not
purely historical are forward-looking statements (as defined in the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995), including any statements regarding
descriptions of management's plans, objectives or goals for future operations,
products or services, and forecasts of its revenues, earnings or other
measures of performance. Factors that could cause future results to vary from
current management expectations include, but are not limited to: legislation;
general economic conditions, especially in the Southeast; changes in interest
rates; deposit flows; the cost of funds; cost of federal deposit insurance
premiums; demand for loan products; demand for financial services;
competition; changes in the quality or composition of AmSouth's loan and
investment portfolios; changes in accounting principles, policies or
guidelines; other economic, competitive, governmental, regulatory, and
technical factors affecting AmSouth's operations, products, services and
prices; and the outcome of litigation, which is inherently uncertain and
depends on the findings of judges and juries. Forward-looking statements in
this report speak only as of the date of this report. AmSouth does not
undertake a duty to update forward-looking statements to reflect circumstances
or events that occur after the date the forward-looking statements are made.
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                                     PART I
                             FINANCIAL INFORMATION
                    Item 1. Financial Statements (Unaudited)

                    AMSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
                      CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CONDITION
                                  (Unaudited)

                                           March 31    December 31   March 31
                                             2001         2000         2000
                                          -----------  -----------  -----------
                                                    (In thousands)
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ASSETS
Cash and due from banks.................  $ 1,153,243  $ 1,278,691  $ 1,541,259
Federal funds sold and securities
 purchased under agreements to resell...    1,651,419    2,155,665       57,843
Trading securities......................       15,940       11,942       31,923
Available-for-sale securities...........    4,425,716    1,908,917    5,974,961
Held-to-maturity securities (market
 value of $4,686,230, $6,729,880 and
 $6,756,448, respectively)..............    4,595,735    6,650,439    6,969,210
Loans held for sale.....................      209,564       92,811      114,891
Loans...................................   24,981,703   25,088,186   26,912,786
Less: Allowance for loan losses.........      380,646      380,434      353,784
  Unearned income.......................      453,759      471,751      295,315
                                          -----------  -----------  -----------
   Net loans............................   24,147,298   24,236,001   26,263,687
Other interest-earning assets...........       24,753       58,800       29,096
Premises and equipment, net.............      635,888      634,201      681,999
Customers' acceptance liability.........        2,118        1,418        6,180
Accrued interest receivable and other
 assets.................................    1,964,137    1,907,093    2,019,124
                                          -----------  -----------  -----------
                                          $38,825,811  $38,935,978  $43,690,173
                                          ===========  ===========  ===========
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits and interest-bearing
 liabilities:
 Deposits:
 Noninterest-bearing demand.............  $ 4,649,832  $ 4,934,466  $ 5,030,443
 Interest-bearing demand................    9,895,703    9,579,868    9,090,952
 Savings................................    1,231,042    1,212,652    2,372,458
 Time...................................    7,787,247    7,841,567    7,638,025
 Foreign time...........................      269,584      503,414    1,440,749
 Certificates of deposit of $100,000 or
  more..................................    2,390,943    2,551,337    2,771,688
                                          -----------  -----------  -----------
   Total deposits.......................   26,224,351   26,623,304   28,344,315
 Federal funds purchased and securities
  sold under agreements to repurchase...    2,235,688    2,320,264    3,515,886
 Other borrowed funds...................      233,963      536,848    1,841,519
 Long-term Federal Home Loan Bank
  advances..............................    5,189,381    4,898,308    5,417,765
 Other long-term debt...................    1,003,580      985,097      980,913
                                          -----------  -----------  -----------
   Total deposits and interest-bearing
    liabilities.........................   34,886,963   35,363,821   40,100,398
Acceptances outstanding.................        2,118        1,418        6,180
Accrued expenses and other liabilities..    1,052,909      757,332      574,451
                                          -----------  -----------  -----------
   Total liabilities....................   35,941,990   36,122,571   40,681,029
                                          -----------  -----------  -----------
Shareholders' equity:
 Preferred stock--no par value:
 Authorized--2,000,000 shares; Issued
  and outstanding--none.................          -0-          -0-          -0-
 Common stock--par value $1 a share:
 Authorized--750,000,000 shares;
  Issued--416,939,871, 416,941,331 and
  416,948,890 shares, respectively......      416,940      416,941      416,949
 Capital surplus........................      692,032      691,677      690,954
 Retained earnings......................    2,509,653    2,466,048    2,533,827
 Cost of common stock in treasury--
  45,808,835, 43,134,387 and 24,667,405
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  shares, respectively..................     (697,930)    (651,328)    (355,574)
 Deferred compensation on restricted
  stock.................................      (17,494)      (2,381)      (5,308)
 Accumulated other comprehensive loss...      (19,380)    (107,550)    (271,704)
                                          -----------  -----------  -----------
   Total shareholders' equity...........    2,883,821    2,813,407    3,009,144
                                          -----------  -----------  -----------
                                          $38,825,811  $38,935,978  $43,690,173
                                          ===========  ===========  ===========

                See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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                    AMSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
                       CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS
                                  (Unaudited)

                                                                Three Months
                                                               Ended March 31
                                                              -----------------
                                                                2001     2000
                                                              -------- --------
                                                                (In thousands
                                                              except per share
                                                                    data)

INTEREST INCOME
Loans.......................................................  $525,454 $562,307
Available-for-sale securities...............................    72,422  100,615
Held-to-maturity securities.................................    74,826  115,055
Trading securities..........................................         8      743
Loans held for sale.........................................     1,963    2,604
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements
 to resell..................................................    24,445      917
Other interest-earning assets...............................       699      457
                                                              -------- --------
   Total interest income....................................   699,817  782,698
                                                              -------- --------
INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest-bearing demand deposits............................    83,607   71,725
Savings deposits............................................     4,909   16,589
Time deposits...............................................   116,585  101,244
Foreign time deposits.......................................     3,797   17,757
Certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more.................    38,467   38,260
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements
 to repurchase..............................................    27,617   51,454
Other borrowed funds........................................     4,508   26,611
Long-term Federal Home Loan Bank advances...................    74,355   73,956
Other long-term debt........................................    16,129   16,529
                                                              -------- --------
   Total interest expense...................................   369,974  414,125
                                                              -------- --------
NET INTEREST INCOME.........................................   329,843  368,573
Provision for loan losses...................................    38,200   25,400
                                                              -------- --------
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES.........   291,643  343,173
                                                              -------- --------
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NONINTEREST REVENUES
Service charges on deposit accounts.........................    59,871   56,853
Trust income................................................    28,879   27,485
Consumer investment services income.........................    23,672   64,627
Bank owned life insurance policies..........................    14,081   12,218
Interchange income..........................................    13,046   12,015
Mortgage income.............................................     4,899   10,067
Portfolio income............................................     2,943    4,129
Other noninterest revenues..................................    34,910   32,643
                                                              -------- --------
   Total noninterest revenues...............................   182,301  220,037
                                                              -------- --------
NONINTEREST EXPENSES
Salaries and employee benefits..............................   141,732  150,583
Equipment expense...........................................    30,296   32,180
Net occupancy expense.......................................    27,813   29,949
Postage and office supplies.................................    12,909   12,311
Communications expense......................................    10,278    9,560
Amortization of intangibles.................................     8,517    9,957
Marketing expense...........................................     8,507   11,993
Subscribers' commissions....................................       -0-   30,594
Merger-related costs........................................       -0-   21,954
Other noninterest expenses..................................    48,015   46,276
                                                              -------- --------
   Total noninterest expenses...............................   288,067  355,357
                                                              -------- --------
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES..................................   185,877  207,853
Income taxes................................................    59,666   68,916
                                                              -------- --------
   NET INCOME...............................................  $126,211 $138,937
                                                              ======== ========
Average common shares outstanding...........................   372,246  391,596
Earnings per common share...................................  $   0.34 $   0.35
Diluted average common shares outstanding...................   374,940  394,502
Diluted earnings per common share...........................  $   0.34 $   0.35

                See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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                    AMSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
                 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
                                  (Unaudited)

                                                                      Deferred
                                                                    Compensation  Accumulated
                                                                         on          Other
                           Common   Capital   Retained   Treasury    Restricted  Comprehensive
                           Stock    Surplus   Earnings     Stock       Stock         Loss        Total
                          --------  -------- ----------  ---------  ------------ ------------- ----------
                                                         (In thousands)

BALANCE AT JANUARY 1,
 2001...................  $416,941  $691,677 $2,466,048  $(651,328)   $ (2,381)    $(107,550)  $2,813,407
Comprehensive income:
 Net income.............       -0-       -0-    126,211        -0-         -0-           -0-      126,211
 Other comprehensive
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  income, net of tax:
 Cumulative effect of
  accounting change (net
  of $6,324 tax
  expense)..............       -0-       -0-        -0-        -0-         -0-        32,262       32,262
 Net gain on derivative
  instruments (net of
  $3,917 tax expense)...       -0-       -0-        -0-        -0-         -0-         7,274        7,274
 Changes in unrealized
  gains and losses on
  available-for-sale
  securities, net of
  reclassification
  adjustment (net of
  $31,143 tax expense)..       -0-       -0-        -0-        -0-         -0-        48,634       48,634
                                                                                               ----------
Comprehensive income....                                                                          214,381
Cash dividends
 declared...............       -0-       -0-    (81,311)       -0-         -0-           -0-      (81,311)
Common stock
 transactions:
 Purchase of common
  stock.................       -0-       -0-        -0-    (73,622)        -0-           -0-      (73,622)
 Employee stock plans...        (1)      355       (951)    23,887     (15,113)          -0-        8,177
 Dividend reinvestment
  plan..................       -0-       -0-       (344)     3,133         -0-           -0-        2,789
                          --------  -------- ----------  ---------    --------     ---------   ----------
BALANCE AT MARCH 31,
 2001...................  $416,940  $692,032 $2,509,653  $(697,930)   $(17,494)    $ (19,380)  $2,883,821
                          ========  ======== ==========  =========    ========     =========   ==========
Disclosure of
 reclassification
 amount:
Unrealized holding gains
 on available-for-sale
 securities arising
 during the period......                                                           $  50,187
Less: Reclassification
 adjustment for gains
 realized in net
 income.................                                                               1,553
                                                                                   ---------
Net unrealized gains on
 available-for-sale
 securities, net of
 tax....................                                                           $  48,634
                                                                                   =========

                See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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                    AMSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
                      CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
                                  (Unaudited)

                                                          Three Months Ended
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                                                               March 31
                                                        -----------------------
                                                           2001        2000
                                                        ----------  -----------
                                                            (In thousands)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income............................................  $  126,211  $   138,937
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
 provided by operating activities:
 Provision for loan losses............................      38,200       25,400
 Depreciation and amortization of premises and
  equipment...........................................      21,607       21,887
 Amortization of premiums and discounts on held-to-
  maturity securities and available-for-sale
  securities..........................................        (916)         515
 Noncash portion of merger-related costs..............         -0-        3,941
 Net gain on branch sale..............................         -0-       (5,007)
 Net (increase) decrease in loans held for sale.......    (116,753)      56,499
 Net (increase) decrease in trading securities........      (5,204)      19,537
 Net gains on sales of available-for-sale
  securities..........................................      (2,488)      (3,266)
 Gains on sales of loans to dealer conduits...........         -0-       (1,404)
 Gains on sales of loans to mortgage conduits.........         -0-       (7,291)
 Net loss on loans held for accelerated disposition...         -0-        1,551
 Net increase in accrued interest receivable and
  other assets........................................     (41,367)    (148,415)
 Net increase (decrease) in accrued expenses and
  other liabilities...................................      87,670      (81,904)
 Provision for deferred income taxes..................      50,828       68,916
 Amortization of intangible assets....................       8,506        9,924
 Other operating activities, net......................       9,565       11,755
                                                        ----------  -----------
   Net cash provided by operating activities..........     175,859      111,575
                                                        ----------  -----------
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from maturities and prepayments of available-
 for-sale securities..................................     158,045      142,464
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities..     100,784      139,718
Purchases of available-for-sale securities............    (444,197)    (355,003)
Proceeds from maturities, prepayments and calls of
 held-to-maturity securities..........................     175,838      239,242
Purchases of held-to-maturity securities..............    (204,683)    (159,177)
Net decrease in federal funds sold and securities
 purchased under agreements to resell.................     504,246       74,840
Net decrease (increase) in other interest-earning
 assets...............................................      34,047      (11,232)
Net decrease (increase) in loans, excluding dealer
 securitization and mortgage and dealer conduits
 sales................................................      36,065   (1,158,259)
Proceeds from sales of loans to dealer conduits.......         -0-      250,182
Proceeds from sales of loans to mortgage conduits.....         -0-      500,038
Net purchases of premises and equipment...............     (23,294)     (25,579)
Net cash from sales of branches, business operations,
 subsidiaries and other assets........................         -0-      (28,240)
                                                        ----------  -----------
   Net cash provided (used) by investing activities...     336,851     (391,006)
                                                        ----------  -----------
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net (decrease) increase in deposits...................    (398,953)     473,466
Net decrease in federal funds purchased and securities
 sold under agreements to repurchase..................     (84,576)    (579,861)
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Net decrease in other borrowed funds..................    (302,885)    (294,201)
Issuance of long-term Federal Home Loan Bank advances
 and other long-term debt.............................     500,000    2,625,000
Payments for maturing long-term debt..................    (208,927)  (1,828,266)
Cash dividends paid...................................     (79,065)    (151,612)
Proceeds from employee stock plans and dividend
 reinvestment plan....................................       9,870       16,183
Purchase of common stock..............................     (73,622)      (5,828)
                                                        ----------  -----------
   Net cash (used) provided by financing activities...    (638,158)     254,881
                                                        ----------  -----------
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents.................    (125,448)     (24,550)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period......   1,278,691    1,565,809
                                                        ----------  -----------
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period............  $1,153,243  $ 1,541,259
                                                        ==========  ===========

                See notes to consolidated financial statements.

                                       6

                    AMSOUTH BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
                  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
                                  (Unaudited)

                  Three Months Ended March 31, 2001 and 2000

   General--The consolidated financial statements conform to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States. The accompanying interim
financial statements are unaudited; however, in the opinion of management, all
adjustments necessary for the fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements have been included. All such adjustments are of a normal recurring
nature. Certain amounts in the prior year's financial statements have been
reclassified to conform with the 2001 presentation. These reclassifications
had no effect on net income. The notes included herein should be read in
conjunction with the notes to consolidated financial statements included in
AmSouth Bancorporation's (AmSouth) 2000 annual report on Form 10-K.

   Accounting Changes--Effective January 1, 2001, AmSouth adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments
and for Hedging Activities," (Statement 133) as amended, and, at that time,
designated anew the derivative instruments used for risk management into
hedging relationships in accordance with the requirements of the new standard.
Derivative instruments used to hedge changes in the fair value of assets and
liabilities due to changes in interest rates were designated as fair value
hedges. Derivative instruments used to hedge the variability of forecasted
cash flows attributable to interest rate risk were designated as cash flow
hedges. The impact of adopting Statement 133 on AmSouth's financial condition
was a net-of-tax increase to other comprehensive income of approximately
$5,650,000, of which $2,031,000 is expected to be reclassified into earnings
during 2001 due to the receipt of variable interest on its hedged variable
rate loans. The impact to net income of adopting Statement 133 was immaterial.
AmSouth also recorded an increase to other comprehensive income of $26,612,000
as a result of transferring $2,107,919,000 of securities from held-to-maturity
to available-for-sale in conjunction with the adoption of Statement 133. The
transition amounts were determined based on the interpretive guidance issued
by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) to date. The FASB continues
to issue interpretive guidance which could require changes to AmSouth's
application of Statement 133 and adjustments to the transition amounts.
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   In September 2000, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 140,
"Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishments of Liabilities" (Statement 140), was issued by the FASB.
Statement 140 replaces Statement 125, issued in June 1996. Statement 140
revises the standards for accounting for securitizations and other transfers
of financial assets and collateral and requires certain disclosures, but
carries over most of Statement 125's provisions without reconsideration.
Statement 140 is effective for transfers occurring after March 31, 2001,
except for certain paragraphs related to the isolation standards for financial
institutions subject to receivership by the FDIC or other affected entities.
For these entities, Statement 140's isolation standards would be effective for
transfers of financial assets occurring after December 31, 2001. Therefore,
affected institutions will have until December 31, 2001, to modify documents
establishing securitization structures to comply with the new isolation
standards. AmSouth is reviewing its conduit and securitization structures
under this new guidance and plans to make any necessary revisions in the
structure of these transactions to ensure these sales comply with the new
guidance. The expanded disclosures about securitizations and collateral are
effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2000. The adoption of
Statement 140 will not have a material impact on AmSouth's financial condition
or results of operations.

   Cash Flows--For the three months ended March 31, 2001 and 2000, AmSouth
paid interest of $371,005,000 and $401,652,000, respectively. During the three
months ended March 31, 2001, AmSouth received income tax refunds of
$38,686,000, and during the three months ended March 31, 2000, AmSouth paid
income taxes of $558,000. Noncash transfers from loans to foreclosed
properties for the three months ended March 31, 2001 and 2000, were $5,551,000
and $10,104,000, respectively, and noncash transfers from foreclosed
properties to loans were $85,000 and $164,000, respectively. For the three
months ended March 31, 2000, noncash transfers from loans to available-for-
sale securities and to other assets of approximately $9,450,000 and $229,000,
respectively, were made in connection with the participation of mortgages to
third-party conduits.

                                       7

   Derivatives--In accordance with Statement 133, AmSouth recognizes all of
its derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities in the statement of
financial condition at fair value. For those derivative instruments that are
designated and qualify as hedging instruments, AmSouth designates the hedging
instrument, based upon the exposure being hedged, as either a fair value hedge
or a cash flow hedge.

   For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as fair value
hedges, the gain or loss on the derivative instrument as well as the
offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are
recognized in other noninterest revenue during the period of the change in
fair values. For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as
cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative
instrument is reported as a component of other comprehensive income and
reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods during which the
hedged transaction affects earnings. The remaining gain or loss on the
derivative instrument in excess of the cumulative change in the present value
of future cash flows of the hedged item, if any, is recognized in other
noninterest income during the period of change. For derivative instruments not
designated as hedging instruments, the gain or loss is recognized in current
earnings during the period of change.

   Fair Value Hedging Strategy--AmSouth has entered into interest rate swap
agreements for interest rate risk exposure management purposes. The interest
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rate swap agreements utilized by AmSouth effectively modify AmSouth's exposure
to interest risk by converting a portion of AmSouth's fixed-rate certificates
of deposit to floating rate. AmSouth also has interest rate swap agreements
which effectively convert portions of its fixed-rate long-term debt to
floating rate. During the period ended March 31, 2001, AmSouth recognized a
net gain of $50,000 related to the ineffective portion of its hedging
instruments.

   Cash Flow Hedging Strategy--AmSouth has entered into interest rate swap
agreements that effectively convert a portion of its floating-rate loans to a
fixed-rate basis, thus reducing the impact of interest-rate changes on future
interest income. Approximately $925,000,000 of AmSouth's loans were designated
as the hedged items to the interest rate swaps agreements at March 31, 2001.
During the period ended March 31, 2001, AmSouth recognized a net gain of
$138,000 related to the ineffective portion of its hedging instruments.

   Comprehensive Income--Total comprehensive income was $214.4 million and
$116.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. Total comprehensive income consists of net income, the change in
the unrealized gains or losses on AmSouth's available-for-sale securities
portfolio arising during the period and the effective portion of cash flow
hedges marked to market.
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   Earnings Per Common Share--The following table sets forth the computation of
earnings per common share and diluted earnings per common share:

                                                                Three Months
                                                               Ended March 31
                                                              -----------------
                                                                2001     2000
                                                              -------- --------
                                                                (In thousands
                                                              except per share
                                                                    data)

   Earnings per common share computation:
    Numerator:
     Net income.............................................. $126,211 $138,937
    Denominator:
     Average common shares outstanding.......................  372,246  391,596
   Earnings per common share................................. $    .34 $    .35

   Diluted earnings per common share computation:
    Numerator:
     Net income.............................................. $126,211 $138,937
    Denominator:
     Average common shares outstanding.......................  372,246  391,596
     Dilutive shares contingently issuable...................    2,694    2,906
                                                              -------- --------
      Average diluted common shares outstanding..............  374,940  394,502
   Diluted earnings per common share......................... $    .34 $    .35

   Shareholders' Equity--On April 20, 2000, AmSouth's Board of Directors
approved the repurchase by AmSouth of up to 35.0 million shares of its
outstanding common stock over a two year period for the purpose of funding
employee benefit and dividend reinvestment plans and for general corporate
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purposes. Through March 31, 2001, 26.7 million shares have been purchased under
this authorization at a cost of $443.3 million. Cash dividends of $0.21 per
common share were declared in the first quarter of 2001. This represents a five
percent increase over the dividend paid during the first quarter of 2000.
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   Business Segment Information--AmSouth has three reportable segments:
Consumer Banking, Commercial Banking, and Wealth Management. Treasury & Other
is comprised of balance sheet management activities that include the
investment portfolio, nondeposit funding and off-balance sheet financial
instruments. Treasury & Other also includes income from bank owned life
insurance policies, net gains on sales of fixed assets, merger-related costs,
and corporate expenses such as corporate overhead and goodwill amortization.
As a result of the sale of IFC Holdings, Inc. (IFC) at the end of the third
quarter of 2000, all revenues and expenses of IFC for 2000 have been
reclassified into Treasury & Other from Wealth Management. The following is a
summary of the segment performance for the three months ended March 31, 2001
and 2000:

                             Consumer Commercial    Wealth   Treasury
                             Banking   Banking    Management & Other    Total
                             -------- ----------  ---------- --------  --------
                                              (In thousands)

Three Months Ended March
 31, 2001
Net interest income from
 external customers........  $ 96,606 $ 176,833    $  (388)  $ 56,792  $329,843
Internal funding...........   135,514   (81,114)     1,197    (55,597)      -0-
                             -------- ---------    -------   --------  --------
Net interest income........   232,120    95,719        809      1,195   329,843
Noninterest revenues.......    81,282    25,462     52,724     22,833   182,301
                             -------- ---------    -------   --------  --------
Total revenues.............   313,402   121,181     53,533     24,028   512,144
Provision for loan losses..    28,652     9,336        -0-        212    38,200
Noninterest expenses.......   170,642    46,523     39,227     31,675   288,067
                             -------- ---------    -------   --------  --------
Income/(loss) before income
 taxes.....................   114,108    65,322     14,306     (7,859)  185,877
Income taxes/(benefits)....    42,951    24,519      5,360    (13,164)   59,666
                             -------- ---------    -------   --------  --------
Segment net income.........  $ 71,157 $  40,803    $ 8,946   $  5,305  $126,211
                             ======== =========    =======   ========  ========
Three Months Ended March
 31, 2000
Net interest income from
 external customers........  $112,689 $ 209,991    $  (162)  $ 46,055  $368,573
Internal funding...........   115,712  (103,857)       601    (12,456)      -0-
                             -------- ---------    -------   --------  --------
Net interest income........   228,401   106,134        439     33,599   368,573
Noninterest revenues.......    82,119    20,993     46,959     69,966   220,037
                             -------- ---------    -------   --------  --------
Total revenues.............   310,520   127,127     47,398    103,565   588,610
Provision for loan losses..    21,270     4,114        -0-         16    25,400
Noninterest expenses.......   179,665    39,512     39,918     96,262   355,357
                             -------- ---------    -------   --------  --------
Income before income
 taxes.....................   109,585    83,501      7,480      7,287   207,853
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Income taxes/(benefits)....    41,204    31,396      2,813     (6,497)   68,916
                             -------- ---------    -------   --------  --------
Segment net income.........  $ 68,381 $  52,105    $ 4,667   $ 13,784  $138,937
                             ======== =========    =======   ========  ========

                                      10

   Securitizations--During the period ended March 31, 2001, there were no
securitizations or transfers to the dealer conduits or residential mortgage
conduits. Therefore, no gains or losses on transfers were recognized during
the period ended March 31, 2001. No gains or losses were recognized on
commercial loans sold to third-party conduits nor was any retained interest
recorded due to the relatively short life of the commercial loans sold into
the conduits (average life of 30 days). The following table provides the
assumptions used in the subsequent valuation of retained interests at March
31, 2001, the cash flows received from and paid to third-party conduits and
securitization trusts during the year and the sensitivity of the current fair
value of residual cash flows to a hypothetical immediate 10 and 20 percent
adverse change in the current assumptions:

                                   Residential                        Dealer
                                 Mortgage Conduit Dealer Conduit  Securitization
                                 ---------------- --------------  --------------
                                             (Dollars in millions)

Cash flow information:
 Servicing fees and retained
  interests.....................      $  7.6          $ 5.3           $ 2.1
Valuation assumptions at March
 31, 2001:
 Discount rate..................       15-20%            15%             15%
 Prepayment rate................       15-25% CPR     1 1/2% ABS      1 1/2% ABS
 Weighted average life (years)..        3.61           1.34            1.41
 Expected credit losses.........         .15%          1.35%           1.33%
Residual cash flow sensitivity:
 Fair value of servicing and
  retained interests at March
  31, 2001......................      $ 57.5          $19.8           $36.2
  Prepayment speed:
    10% change..................        (3.8)          (1.1)           (0.2)
    20% change..................        (6.2)          (2.7)           (0.4)
  Credit losses:
    10% change..................        (0.2)          (0.2)           (1.0)
    20% change..................        (0.5)          (0.9)           (2.0)

   This sensitivity test is hypothetical and isolates the potential impact of
changes in a single assumption on total fair value. These and other
assumptions used in the calculation of fair values may in fact exhibit some
correlation (which would potentially magnify the impact of a scenario) or may
exhibit some negative correlation (which would potentially have some partial
offsetting benefit). Also, changes in assumptions do not provide linear
results. Thus, it is not possible to extrapolate the impact of other scenarios
from these projections.

                                      11
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   The following table presents managed loan information on loans which have
been securitized or sold to conduits. This information includes the total
principal amount outstanding, the portion that has been derecognized and the
portion that continues to be recognized in the statement of financial
condition as of March 31, 2001, along with quantitative information about
delinquencies and net credit losses (in millions). The following table
includes commercial loans sold to third-party conduits, residential mortgages
and dealer loans sold to third-party conduits during prior years, dealer loans
securitized in 2000, and mortgage loans which were securitized through REMICS
in 1998:

                                                           Other
                                    Residential Dealer  Residential Commercial
                                     Mortgages  Loans    Mortgages    Loans
                                    ----------- ------  ----------- ----------
                                              (Dollars in millions)

Outstanding as of 3/31/01:
 Loans held in portfolio...........   $1,495    $3,069    $4,713     $ 8,758
 Loans securitized/sold............    2,538     1,474       -0-       1,826
 REMIC (bond portfolio)............      142       -0-       249         -0-
                                      ------    ------    ------     -------
  Total managed loans..............   $4,175    $4,543    $4,962     $10,584
                                      ------    ------    ------     -------
Total delinquencies at 3/31/01.....   $  102    $  103    $  123     $   231
Delinquencies as a percent of
 ending managed loans..............     2.44%     2.26%     2.48%       2.18%
Net credit losses during 2001......   $  0.4    $   14    $    2     $    15
Net credit losses as a percent of
 ending managed loans..............     0.04%     1.26%     0.18%       0.57%
                                      ------    ------    ------     -------
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                    Independent Accountants' Review Report

The Board of Directors
AmSouth Bancorporation

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated statement of condition of
AmSouth Bancorporation and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2001 and 2000, and the
related consolidated statement of earnings and cash flows for the three-month
periods ended March 31, 2001 and 2000, and the consolidated statement of
shareholders' equity for the three-month period ended March 31, 2001. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management.

We conducted our reviews in accordance with the standards established by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. A review of interim
financial information consists principally of applying analytical procedures
to financial data, and making inquiries of persons responsible for financial
and accounting matters. It is substantially less in scope than an audit
conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States, which will be performed for the full year with the objective of
expressing an opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole.
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that
should be made to the accompanying consolidated financial statements referred
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to above for them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States.

We have previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States, the consolidated statement of condition of
AmSouth Bancorporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2000, and the
related consolidated statements of earnings, shareholders' equity, and cash
flows for the year then ended (not presented herein) and in our report dated
January 31, 2001, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated
financial statements. In our opinion, the information set forth in the
accompanying consolidated statement of condition as of December 31, 2000 is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated
statement of condition from which it has been derived.

                                          /s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

May 11, 2001
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations

Overview

   AmSouth Bancorporation (AmSouth) recorded net income for the quarter ended
March 31, 2001 of $126.2 million, a 9.2 percent decrease compared to last
year's first quarter earnings of $138.9 million. Diluted earnings per share
was $.34 for the first quarter of 2001, down 2.9 percent from $.35 for the
same period of 2000. Return on average assets was 1.33 percent for the first
quarter of 2001 compared to 1.28 percent for the same period in 2000. Return
on equity decreased to 18.08 percent for the first three months of 2001 from
18.96 percent for the first quarter of 2000. The decrease in net income
reflected lower net interest income and noninterest revenues as well as higher
provision charges for loan losses. These items were offset by an 18.9 percent
decrease in noninterest expenses in the quarter compared to the same period in
2000. The year over year decrease reflects the impact of the sale of
approximately $5 billion in earning assets during 2000 and the third quarter
sale of IFC Holdings, Inc. (IFC). See "Net Interest Income" and "Noninterest
Revenues and Noninterest Expenses" for additional discussion.

   Total assets at March 31, 2001 were $38.8 billion compared to $43.7 billion
at March 31, 2000, while total interest-earning assets were $35.3 billion at
March 31, 2001 compared to $39.9 billion at the end of the first quarter of
2000. These decreases reflected the impact of securities and loans sales
associated with the third quarter 2000 financial restructuring. Loans net of
unearned income at March 31, 2001 decreased $2.1 billion from March 31, 2000
to $24.5 billion. The investment portfolio, which consists of available-for-
sale (AFS) and held-to-maturity (HTM) securities, decreased to $9.0 billion at
March 31, 2001, compared to $12.9 billion at March 31, 2000, primarily as a
result of the balance sheet restructuring in the third quarter of 2000. On
January 1, 2001, AmSouth transferred approximately $2.1 billion of securities
from HTM to AFS in conjunction with AmSouth's adoption of Statement 133.

   On the funding side of the balance sheet, total deposits at March 31, 2001
decreased by $2.1 billion compared to March 31, 2000. Excluding the $1.2
billion decrease in foreign time deposits (Eurodollar deposits), domestic
deposits declined by $949 million. Decreases in domestic deposits occurred in
noninterest-bearing demand deposits and savings deposits. These decreases were
partially offset by increases in interest-bearing demand deposits and time
deposits. Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to
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repurchase and other borrowed funds decreased by $1.3 billion and $1.6
billion, respectively, compared to March 31, 2000. The decrease reflects the
use of proceeds from the restructuring transactions to reduce short-term
borrowings including foreign time deposits.

Net Interest Income

   Net interest income (NII) on a fully taxable equivalent basis for the three
months ended March 31, 2001 was $329.8 million, a decrease of $38.7 million,
or 10.5%, as compared to the first quarter of 2000. The decrease in net
interest income was primarily due to a decrease in average interest-earning
assets for the quarter, resulting from the third quarter 2000 financial
restructuring. Average interest-earning assets for the first quarter of 2001
were $35.1 billion, a decrease of $4.9 billion from the same period of 2000.
However, the net interest margin improved 16 basis points to 3.93% as the
financial restructuring removed lower yielding assets from the balance sheet
and freed up funds to pay down higher cost borrowings. Average borrowings for
the quarter decreased to $8.7 billion, a $3.5 billion decrease from $12.2
billion during the first quarter of 2000. Further margin expansion was limited
by AmSouth's $1.7 billion average position in lower-yielding federal funds
sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell during the first
quarter. As loan demand accelerates, AmSouth's plan is to shift these funds
into higher yielding loans, raising the level of loans on the balance sheet
and expanding the margin. Future interest-earning asset growth is expected to
moderate in a range of four to six percent on an annualized basis. Management
is also actively working to increase core deposits as a means of funding asset
growth. AmSouth expects its net interest margin to improve to a range of 4.00
to 4.20 percent for the full year 2001.

                                      14

Asset/Liability Management

   AmSouth maintains a formal asset and liability management process to
quantify, monitor and control interest rate risk and to assist management in
maintaining stability in the net interest margin under varying interest rate
environments. AmSouth accomplishes this process through the development and
implementation of lending, funding, pricing and hedging strategies designed to
maximize NII performance under varying interest rate environments subject to
specific liquidity and interest rate risk guidelines.

   An earnings simulation model is the primary tool used to assess the
direction and magnitude of changes in NII resulting from changes in interest
rates. Key assumptions in the model include prepayment speeds on mortgage-
related assets; cash flows and maturities of derivatives and other financial
instruments held for purposes other than trading; changes in market
conditions, loan volumes and pricing; deposit volume, mix and rate
sensitivity; customer preferences; and management's financial and capital
plans. These assumptions are inherently uncertain, and, as a result, the model
cannot precisely estimate NII or precisely predict the impact of higher or
lower interest rates on NII. Actual results will differ from simulated results
due to timing, magnitude and frequency of interest rate changes and changes in
market conditions and management's strategies, among other factors.

   Based on the results of the simulation model as of March 31, 2001, AmSouth
would expect NII to increase $8 million or approximately 0.5 percent and
decrease $10 million or approximately 0.7 percent if interest rates gradually
increase or decrease, respectively, from current rates by 100 basis points
over a 12-month period. This level of interest rate risk is within AmSouth's
policy guidelines. As of March 31, 2000, the simulation model indicated that
NII would decrease $36.9 million and increase $35.6 million if interest rates
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gradually increased or decreased, respectively, from their current rates by
100 basis points over a 12-month period.

   The reduction in AmSouth's interest sensitivity compared to the first
quarter of 2000 was primarily the result of the financial restructuring
initiated in the third quarter of 2000. As part of the financial
restructuring, AmSouth sold $4.0 billion of low-yielding fixed-rate investment
securities and securitized and sold approximately $1.0 billion of low-yielding
fixed-rate automobile loans. These fixed-rate assets were primarily funded by
floating-rate overnight and other short-term borrowings. This action reduced
the impact of interest rate fluctuations on NII. In comparison to December 31,
2000 results, the simulation model at March 31, 2001 showed a slight increase
in AmSouth's interest rate sensitivity. The change in the results of the
simulation model reflected an extension of the maturities of commercial paper
used by off-balance sheet conduits to fund loans previously purchased from
AmSouth. The extension of the commercial paper maturities, which occurred
during the first quarter of 2001, reduced the impact of interest rate changes,
over a 12-month period, on the interest spread received by AmSouth on these
loans. In addition, changes in the market dynamics as a result of Federal
Reserve rate cuts during the first quarter, changes in the forecasted mix of
earning assets and changes in AmSouth's deposit pricing strategy also impacted
the change in the interest sensitivity results from year-end results.

   As part of its activities to manage interest rate risk, AmSouth, from time
to time, utilizes various derivative instruments such as interest rate swaps,
caps and floors. There were maturities, calls and closeouts of interest rate
swaps totaling $70 million during the first three months of 2001. At March 31,
2001, AmSouth had interest rate swaps, all of which receive fixed rates,
totaling a notional amount of $2.6 billion. At March 31, 2001, AmSouth also
held other derivative instruments to provide customers and AmSouth a means of
managing the risks of changing interest and foreign exchange rates. These
other derivative instruments were immaterial.

Credit Quality

   AmSouth maintains an allowance for loan losses which management believes is
adequate to absorb losses inherent in the loan portfolio. A formal review is
prepared quarterly to assess the risk in the portfolio and to determine the
adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. The review includes analyses of
historical performance, the level of nonperforming and adversely rated loans,
specific analyses of certain problem loans, loan activity since the previous
quarter, reports prepared by the Credit Review Department, consideration of
current economic conditions, and other pertinent information. The level of
allowance to net loans outstanding will vary depending on the overall results
of this quarterly review. The review is presented to and subsequently approved
by senior management and reviewed by the Audit and Community Responsibility
Committee of the Board of Directors.
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   Table 5 presents a five-quarter analysis of the allowance for loan losses.
At March 31, 2001, the allowance for loan losses was $380.6 million, or 1.55%
of loans net of unearned income, compared to $353.8 million, or 1.33%, for the
prior year. This increase primarily reflects a deterioration of credit quality
in AmSouth's syndicated commercial loan portfolio primarily due to a weakening
economy. The coverage ratio of the allowance for loan losses to nonperforming
loans was 181.84% at March 31, 2001, a decrease from the March 31, 2000 ratio
of 289.12%.

   Net charge-offs for the quarter ended March 31, 2001, were $38.0 million,
an increase of $12.6 million from $25.4 million a year earlier. Annualized net
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charge-offs to average loans net of unearned income were .63% and .38%,
respectively, for the three months ended March 31, 2001 and 2000. The increase
in net charge-offs occurred primarily in the commercial loan and the dealer
indirect automobile portfolios and primarily reflected the impact of a slowing
economy. Commercial loan net charge-offs increased $7.4 million for the three
months versus the same period of 2000. Net charge-offs in AmSouth's dealer
indirect portfolio increased $1.9 million for the first three months of 2001
versus the same period of the prior year. In addition, net charge-offs for the
revolving credit portfolio and other consumer portfolio increased $1.6 million
and $1.1 million, respectively, for the three months ended March 31, 2001
versus the same period of the prior year. Annualized net charge-offs for the
commercial and consumer loan portfolios were .40% and 1.03%, respectively, for
the three months ended March 31, 2001, compared to .17% and .74%,
respectively, for the same period of 2000. Consistent with the increased
charge-offs, the provision for loan losses for the first quarter was $38.2
million compared to $25.4 million for the year-earlier period.

   Table 6 presents a five-quarter comparison of the components of
nonperforming assets. At March 31, 2001, nonperforming assets as a percentage
of loans net of unearned income, foreclosed properties and repossessions
increased 38 basis points to .93% compared to .55% at March 31, 2000. The
level of nonperforming assets increased $82.4 million during the same period.

   Included in nonperforming assets at March 31, 2001 and 2000, was $152.5
million and $58.3 million, respectively, in loans that were considered to be
impaired, substantially all of which were on a nonaccrual basis. Collateral-
dependent loans, which were measured at the fair value of the collateral,
constituted a majority of these impaired loans. At March 31, 2001 and 2000,
there was $59.3 million and $21.2 million, respectively, in the allowance for
loan losses specifically allocated to these impaired loans. The average
balance of impaired loans for the three months ended March 31, 2001 and 2000,
was $128.5 million and $63.7 million, respectively. AmSouth recorded no
material interest income on its impaired loans during the three months ended
March 31, 2001.

Noninterest Revenues and Noninterest Expenses

   For the three months ended March 31, 2001, noninterest revenues (NIR)
totaled $182.3 million, compared to $220.0 million for the prior-year period,
a 17.1% decrease. The decrease in NIR was primarily due to the sale of IFC in
the third quarter of 2000. Excluding the revenues from IFC, NIR in the first
quarter of 2001 would have shown an increase of 4.9% from an adjusted $173.8
million of NIR in 2000. This increase in NIR versus the prior year first
quarter was primarily due to higher consumer investment services income,
service charges on deposits, trust income and bank owned life insurance (BOLI)
income offset by a decrease in mortgage and portfolio income. IFC contributed
$44.4 million of consumer investment services income during the first quarter
of 2000. Excluding IFC, consumer investment services income in the first
quarter of 2001 increased by $3.4 million or approximately 17.0 percent versus
the first quarter of 2000. The increase reflected higher annuity income
associated with the continued strong performance of AmSouth's platform annuity
sales program. The increase in service charge income was primarily the result
of higher treasury management fees as a result of higher sales to corporate
customers and new opportunities created by the merger with First American
Corporation (First American). The increase in service charge income also
reflected higher revenue from overdraft and NSF fees. Trust income increased
by $1.4 million compared to the same period of 2000 adjusted for the impact of
the IFC sale. The growth occurred despite the substantial declines in the
capital markets and was primarily generated from new business won during the
fourth and first quarters as well as early stage success with AmSouth's wealth
management initiative. Income from BOLI increased $1.9 million as a result of
AmSouth receiving a benefit payment in the first quarter of 2001. Partially
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offsetting these increases was a decrease in mortgage income of

                                      16

0$5.2 million compared to the first quarter of 2000. This decline reflected a
$7.3 million decrease in gains from the sale of mortgage loans to third-party
conduits offset by higher gains on the sale of mortgage servicing of
approximately $2.1 million. Portfolio income decreased as a result of fewer
sales of available-for-sale securities in 2001. Management anticipates that
sustainable noninterest revenue growth in a range of five to eight percent may
be achievable with the strongest growth coming in consumer investment
services.

   Noninterest expenses decreased 18.9% to $288.1 million at March 31, 2001,
compared to $355.4 million for the prior year. Excluding the impact of merger-
related charges and expenses related to IFC recorded in the first quarter of
2000, NIE decreased 1.9 percent or $5.5 million in the first quarter of 2001
compared to $293.5 million in the same period of 2000. Salaries and employee
benefits decreased $4.2 million when compared to the same period a year ago
adjusted for the IFC sale. This decrease reflects synergies achieved as a
result of the merger with First American partially offset by merit increases.
Excluding the impact of IFC, marketing expense decreased $3.4 million or 28.8%
to $8.5 million primarily due to cost control initiatives implemented in 2000.
Equipment expense, excluding IFC, decreased 5.7% to $30.3 million, primarily
due to synergies achieved as a result of the merger with First American. Net
occupancy expense, adjusted for the IFC sale, decreased $1.3 million due
primarily to branch closures and sales. As a result of the sale of IFC, no
expense for subscriber commissions occurred in the first quarter of 2001,
compared to $30.6 million in the same period last year. Partially offsetting
these decreases was an increase in other noninterest expenses associated with
higher collection charges and non-credit losses.

Capital Adequacy

   At March 31, 2001, shareholders' equity totaled $2.9 billion or 7.4% of
total assets. Since December 31, 2000, shareholders' equity increased $70.4
million primarily as a result of net income for the quarter of $126.2 million.
In addition, shareholders' equity increased $75.2 million as a result of
higher valuation of the AFS portfolio, of which $26.6 million was a result of
transferring approximately $2.1 billion of securities from held-to-maturity to
available-for-sale in conjunction with AmSouth's adoption of Statement 133.
The increase in shareholders' equity also reflected $12.9 million of other
comprehensive income associated with cash flow hedges, of which $5.7 million
related to the initial adoption of Statement 133. These increases in
shareholders' equity were offset by the declaration of dividends of $81.3
million and the purchase of 4.3 million shares of AmSouth common stock for
$73.6 million during the first quarter.

   Table 9 presents the capital amounts and risk-adjusted capital ratios for
AmSouth and AmSouth Bank at March 31, 2001 and 2000. At March 31, 2001,
AmSouth exceeded the regulatory minimum required risk-adjusted Tier 1 Capital
Ratio of 4.00% and risk-adjusted Total Capital Ratio of 8.00%. In addition,
the risk-adjusted capital ratios for AmSouth Bank were above the regulatory
minimums, and the Bank was well capitalized at March 31, 2001.
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                           Table 1--Financial Summary
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                                                     March 31
                                              ------------------------    %
                                                 2001         2000      Change
                                              -----------  -----------  ------
                                                      (In thousands)

Balance sheet summary
End-of-period balances:
 Loans net of unearned income................ $24,527,944  $26,617,471   (7.9)%
 Total assets................................  38,825,811   43,690,173  (11.1)
 Total deposits..............................  26,224,351   28,344,315   (7.5)
 Shareholders' equity........................   2,883,821    3,009,144   (4.2)
Year-to-date average balances:
 Loans net of unearned income................ $24,645,798  $26,681,345   (7.6)%
 Total assets................................  38,498,447   43,594,571  (11.7)
 Total deposits..............................  26,077,285   27,830,850   (6.3)
 Shareholders' equity........................   2,831,229    2,947,234   (3.9)

                                                   Three Months
                                                  Ended March 31
                                              ------------------------    %
                                                 2001         2000      Change
                                              -----------  -----------  ------
                                              (In thousands except per share
                                                          data)

Earnings summary
 Net income.................................. $   126,211  $   138,937   (9.2)%
 Earnings per common share...................        0.34         0.35   (2.9)
 Diluted earnings per common share...........        0.34         0.35   (2.9)
 Return on average assets (annualized).......        1.33%        1.28%
 Return on average equity (annualized).......       18.08        18.96
 Operating efficiency........................       55.12        59.71
Selected ratios
 Average equity to assets....................        7.35%        6.76%
 End-of-period equity to assets..............        7.43         6.89
 End-of-period tangible equity to assets.....        6.63         6.00
 Allowance for loan losses to loans net of
  unearned income............................        1.55         1.33
Common stock data
 Cash dividends declared..................... $      0.21  $      0.20
 Book value at end of period.................        7.77         7.67
 Market value at end of period...............       16.81        14.94
 Average common shares outstanding...........     372,246      391,596
 Average common shares outstanding-diluted...     374,940      394,502
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 Table 2--Quarterly Yields Earned on Average Interest-Earning Assets and Rates
                 Paid on Average Interest-Bearing Liabilities

                               2001                                                                   2000
                    ---------------------------- -------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                           First Quarter               Fourth Quarter                Third Quarter               Second Quarter
                    ---------------------------- ---------------------------- ---------------------------- ---------------------
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                      Average    Revenue/ Yield/   Average    Revenue/ Yield/   Average    Revenue/ Yield/   Average    Revenue/
                      Balance    Expense   Rate    Balance    Expense   Rate    Balance    Expense   Rate    Balance    Expense
                    -----------  -------- ------ -----------  -------- ------ -----------  -------- ------ -----------  --------
                                                                  (Taxable equivalent basis-dollars in thousands)

Assets
Interest-earning
assets:
 Loans net of
 unearned income..  $24,645,798  $530,572  8.73% $24,599,887  $556,775  9.00% $25,613,223  $573,685  8.91% $26,642,183  $584,125
 Available-for-
 sale securities:
 Taxable..........    3,900,993    71,850  7.47    1,869,932    34,361  7.31    5,678,994    94,775  6.64    5,989,040    99,186
 Tax-free.........       95,192     1,830  7.80       62,293     1,136  7.25       64,747     1,145  7.04       66,625     1,100
                    -----------  --------        -----------  --------        -----------  --------        -----------  --------
 Total available-
 for-sale
 securities.......    3,996,185    73,680  7.48    1,932,225    35,497  7.31    5,743,741    95,920  6.64    6,055,665   100,286
                    -----------  --------        -----------  --------        -----------  --------        -----------  --------
 Held-to-maturity
 securities:
 Taxable..........    4,256,209    72,571  6.91    6,298,607   108,737  6.87    6,445,507   110,990  6.85    6,522,650   112,119
 Tax-free.........      347,660     6,316  7.37      395,589     7,078  7.12      397,506     7,170  7.18      391,612     7,147
                    -----------  --------        -----------  --------        -----------  --------        -----------  --------
 Total held-to-
 maturity
 securities.......    4,603,869    78,887  6.95    6,694,196   115,815  6.88    6,843,013   118,160  6.87    6,914,262   119,266
                    -----------  --------        -----------  --------        -----------  --------        -----------  --------
  Total investment
  securities......    8,600,054   152,567  7.19    8,626,421   151,312  6.98   12,586,754   214,080  6.77   12,969,927   219,552
 Other interest-
 earning assets...    1,883,404    27,115  5.84    2,120,770    36,453  6.84      258,080     4,211  6.49      232,846     3,740
                    -----------  --------        -----------  --------        -----------  --------        -----------  --------
 Total interest-
 earning assets...   35,129,256   710,254  8.20   35,347,078   744,540  8.38   38,458,057   791,976  8.19   39,844,956   807,417
Cash and other
assets............    3,710,493                    3,660,557                    3,929,663                    4,149,891
Allowance for loan
losses............     (381,223)                    (367,361)                    (348,796)                    (352,305)
Market valuation
on available-for-
sale securities...       39,921                       (8,998)                    (178,535)                    (252,612)
                    -----------                  -----------                  -----------                  -----------
                    $38,498,447                  $38,631,276                  $41,860,389                  $43,389,930
                    ===========                  ===========                  ===========                  ===========
Liabilities and
Shareholders'
Equity
Interest-bearing
liabilities:
 Interest-bearing
 demand deposits..  $ 9,707,570    83,607  3.49  $ 9,401,061    88,712  3.75  $ 9,502,341    87,349  3.66  $ 9,514,403    79,878
 Savings
 deposits.........    1,211,685     4,909  1.64    1,244,649     5,224  1.67    1,333,857     5,651  1.69    1,722,267     9,566
 Time deposits....    7,824,754   116,585  6.04    8,010,342   122,922  6.10    7,816,704   115,863  5.90    7,593,438   105,684
 Foreign time
 deposits.........      332,426     3,797  4.63      397,954     5,622  5.62    1,234,991    19,820  6.38    1,427,241    21,341
 Certificates of
 deposit of
 $100,000 or
 more.............    2,518,103    38,467  6.20    2,659,888    42,201  6.31    2,861,681    45,019  6.26    2,813,227    40,744
 Federal funds
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 purchased and
 securities sold
 under agreements
 to repurchase....    2,341,302    27,617  4.78    2,388,137    32,909  5.48    3,540,942    53,015  5.96    3,720,045    51,032
 Other interest-
 bearing
 liabilities......    6,383,876    94,992  6.03    6,485,954   102,391  6.28    7,411,097   118,175  6.34    8,266,919   124,080
                    -----------  --------        -----------  --------        -----------  --------        -----------  --------
 Total interest-
 bearing
 liabilities......   30,319,716   369,974  4.95   30,587,985   399,981  5.20   33,701,613   444,892  5.25   35,057,540   432,325
                                 --------  ----               --------  ----               --------  ----               --------
Net interest
spread............                         3.25%                        3.18%                        2.94%
Noninterest-
bearing demand
deposits..........    4,482,747                    4,527,554                    4,640,946                    4,770,285
Other
liabilities.......      864,755                      758,421                      744,397                      658,389
Shareholders'
equity............    2,831,229                    2,757,316                    2,773,433                    2,903,716
                    -----------                  -----------                  -----------                  -----------
                    $38,498,447                  $38,631,276                  $41,860,389                  $43,389,930
                    ===========                  ===========                  ===========                  ===========
Net interest
income/margin on a
taxable equivalent
basis.............                340,280  3.93%               344,559  3.88%               347,084  3.59%               375,092
                                           ====                         ====                         ====
Taxable equivalent
adjustment:
 Loans............                  5,118                       18,786                        3,773                       16,785
 Available-for-
 sale securities..                  1,257                          882                          822                          848
 Held-to-maturity
 securities.......                  4,062                        4,775                        4,711                        4,823
 Trading
 securities.......                    -0-                          -0-                          -0-                          -0-
                                 --------                     --------                     --------                     --------
 Total taxable
 equivalent
 adjustment.......                 10,437                       24,443                        9,306                       22,456
                                 --------                     --------                     --------                     --------
  Net interest
  income..........               $329,843                     $320,116                     $337,778                     $352,636
                                 ========                     ========                     ========                     ========

                                    First Quarter
                           --------------------------------
                    Yield/   Average    Revenue/ Yield/
                     Rate    Balance    Expense   Rate
                    ------ ------------ -------- ------

Assets
Interest-earning
assets:
 Loans net of
 unearned income..   8.82% $26,681,345  $563,191  8.49%
 Available-for-
 sale securities:
 Taxable..........   6.66    6,014,598   100,290  6.71
 Tax-free.........   6.64       65,763     1,183  7.24
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                           ------------ --------
 Total available-
 for-sale
 securities.......   6.66    6,080,361   101,473  6.71
                           ------------ --------
 Held-to-maturity
 securities:
 Taxable..........   6.91    6,612,916   112,836  6.86
 Tax-free.........   7.34      387,092     6,962  7.23
                           ------------ --------
 Total held-to-
 maturity
 securities.......   6.94    7,000,008   119,798  6.88
                           ------------ --------
  Total investment
  securities......   6.81   13,080,369   221,271  6.80
 Other interest-
 earning assets...   6.46      270,785     4,721  7.01
                           ------------ --------
 Total interest-
 earning assets...   8.15   40,032,499   789,183  7.93
Cash and other
assets............           4,138,693
Allowance for loan
losses............            (355,515)
Market valuation
on available-for-
sale securities...            (221,106)
                           ------------
                           $43,594,571
                           ============
Liabilities and
Shareholders'
Equity
Interest-bearing
liabilities:
 Interest-bearing
 demand deposits..   3.38  $ 9,086,434    71,725  3.17
 Savings
 deposits.........   2.23    2,352,997    16,589  2.84
 Time deposits....   5.60    7,619,385   101,244  5.34
 Foreign time
 deposits.........   6.01    1,296,318    17,757  5.51
 Certificates of
 deposit of
 $100,000 or
 more.............   5.83    2,778,322    38,260  5.54
 Federal funds
 purchased and
 securities sold
 under agreements
 to repurchase....   5.52    4,044,026    51,454  5.12
 Other interest-
 bearing
 liabilities......   6.04    8,166,443   117,096  5.77
                           ------------ --------
 Total interest-
 bearing
 liabilities......   4.96   35,343,925   414,125  4.71
                    ------              -------- ------
Net interest
spread............   3.19%                        3.22%
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Noninterest-
bearing demand
deposits..........           4,697,394
Other
liabilities.......             606,018
Shareholders'
equity............           2,947,234
                           ------------
                           $43,594,571
                           ============
Net interest
income/margin on a
taxable equivalent
basis.............   3.79%               375,058  3.77%
                    ======                       ======
Taxable equivalent
adjustment:
 Loans............                           884
 Available-for-
 sale securities..                           858
 Held-to-maturity
 securities.......                         4,743
 Trading
 securities.......                           -0-
                                        --------
 Total taxable
 equivalent
 adjustment.......                         6,485
                                        --------
  Net interest
  income..........                      $368,573
                                        ========

----
NOTE: The taxable equivalent adjustment has been computed based on the
  statutory federal income tax rate, adjusted for applicable state income
  taxes net of the related federal tax benefit. Loans net of unearned income
  includes nonaccrual loans for all periods presented. Available-for-sale
  securities excludes certain noninterest-earning, marketable equity
  securities. Statement 133 valuation adjustments related to time deposits,
  certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more and other interest-bearing
  liabilities are included in other liabilities.
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           Table 3--Maturities and Interest Rates Exchanged on Swaps

                                        Mature During
                       -------------------------------------------------------
                       2001   2002   2003   2004   2005   2008   2009   Total
                       -----  -----  -----  -----  -----  -----  -----  ------
                                    (Dollars in millions)

Receive fixed swaps:
  Notional amount..... $ 537  $ 970  $ 290  $ 350  $ 150  $ 125  $ 175  $2,597
  Receive rate........  6.40%  6.62%  6.34%  6.21%  6.25%  6.15%  6.22%   6.42%
  Pay rate............  5.01%  5.18%  5.20%  5.21%  5.28%  5.38%  5.26%   5.17%
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--------
NOTE:  The interest rates exchanged are calculated assuming that interest
       rates remain unchanged from March 31, 2001. Call option expiration date
       is used as maturity date until the option expires. The information
       presented could change as LIBOR rates change and call options are
       exercised or expire.

                       Table 4--Loans and Credit Quality

                                                                    Net Charge-offs
                                  Loans*            Nonperforming    Three Months
                                 March 31         Loans** March 31  Ended March 31
                         ------------------------ ----------------- ----------------
                             2001        2000       2001     2000    2001     2000
                         ------------ ----------- -------- -------- -------  -------
                                               (In thousands)

Commercial:
  Commercial &
   industrial........... $  7,189,519 $ 8,203,477 $140,889 $ 35,021 $15,289  $ 7,129
  Commercial loans--
   secured by real
   estate...............    1,568,868   1,976,573   19,121   38,247    (295)     463
                         ------------ ----------- -------- -------- -------  -------
   Total commercial.....    8,758,387  10,180,050  160,010   73,268  14,994    7,592
                         ------------ ----------- -------- -------- -------  -------
Commercial real estate:
  Commercial real estate
   mortgages............    2,426,021   2,432,683   26,461   15,948     165     (113)
  Real estate
   construction.........    2,398,445   2,238,612    5,011    6,160     289      (60)
                         ------------ ----------- -------- -------- -------  -------
   Total commercial real
    estate..............    4,824,466   4,671,295   31,472   22,108     454     (173)
                         ------------ ----------- -------- -------- -------  -------
Consumer:
  Residential first
   mortgages............    1,495,249   1,638,740   12,355   13,099     438      317
  Other residential
   mortgages............    4,712,525   4,179,034    4,613   10,198   2,257    2,435
  Dealer indirect.......    3,068,844   4,153,408        2      682  11,121    9,191
  Revolving credit......      490,391     467,470      -0-      253   5,056    3,425
  Other consumer........    1,178,082   1,327,474      881    2,757   3,668    2,597
                         ------------ ----------- -------- -------- -------  -------
   Total consumer.......   10,945,091  11,766,126   17,851   26,989  22,540   17,965
                         ------------ ----------- -------- -------- -------  -------
                         $ 24,527,944 $26,617,471 $209,333 $122,365 $37,988  $25,384
                         ============ =========== ======== ======== =======  =======

--------
*  Net of unearned income.
**  Exclusive of accruing loans 90 days past due and $29.2 million of
    nonperforming assets classified as held for accelerated disposition at
    March 31, 2000.
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                      Table 5--Allowance for Loan Losses
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                             2001                          2000
                          ----------- -----------------------------------------------
                          1st Quarter 4th Quarter 3rd Quarter 2nd Quarter 1st Quarter
                          ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- -----------
                                            (Dollars in thousands)

Balance at beginning of
 period.................   $380,434    $365,164    $346,030    $353,784    $354,679
Loans charged off.......    (50,506)    (55,221)    (48,319)    (34,471)    (40,377)
Recoveries of loans
 previously charged
 off....................     12,518      14,411      12,890      11,743      14,993
                           --------    --------    --------    --------    --------
Net charge-offs.........    (37,988)    (40,810)    (35,429)    (22,728)    (25,384)
Addition to allowance
 charged to expense.....     38,200      55,600     123,800      22,800      25,400
Allowance
 sold/transferred, net..        -0-         -0-     (69,091)     (5,500)        -0-
Allowance transferred to
 other liabilities......        -0-         480        (146)     (2,326)       (911)
                           --------    --------    --------    --------    --------
Balance at end of
 period.................   $380,646    $380,434    $365,164    $346,030    $353,784
                           ========    ========    ========    ========    ========
Allowance for loan
 losses to loans net of
 unearned income........       1.55%       1.55%       1.49%       1.35%       1.33%
Allowance for loan
 losses to nonperforming
 loans*.................     181.84%     211.75%     249.99%     290.58%     289.12%
Allowance for loan
 losses to nonperforming
 assets*................     167.02%     193.82%     224.46%     256.94%     243.19%
Net charge-offs to
 average loans net of
 unearned income
 (annualized)...........       0.63%       0.66%       0.55%       0.34%       0.38%

--------
*  Exclusive of accruing loans 90 days past due and $35.6 million and $29.2
   million of nonperforming assets classified as held for accelerated
   disposition at June 30, 2000 and March 31, 2000, respectively.

                         Table 6--Nonperforming Assets

                            2001                       2000
                          --------  -------------------------------------------
                          March 31  December 31 September 30 June 30   March 31
                          --------  ----------- ------------ --------  --------
                                        (Dollars in thousands)

Nonaccrual loans........  $209,333   $179,659     $146,069   $119,082  $122,365
Foreclosed properties...    13,688     12,360       12,714     13,780    19,839
Repossessions...........     4,888      4,259        3,906      1,810     3,274
                          --------   --------     --------   --------  --------
 Total nonperforming
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  assets*...............  $227,909   $196,278     $162,689   $134,672  $145,478
                          ========   ========     ========   ========  ========
Nonperforming assets* to
 loans net of unearned
 income, foreclosed
 properties and
 repossessions..........      0.93%      0.80%        0.66%      0.53%     0.55%
Accruing loans 90 days
 past due...............  $ 89,237   $ 85,410     $ 78,314   $ 70,800  $ 66,375

--------
*  Exclusive of accruing loans 90 days past due and $35.6 million and $29.2
   million of nonperforming assets classified as held for accelerated
   disposition at June 30, 2000 and March 31, 2000, respectively.
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                        Table 7--Investment Securities

                                       March 31, 2001        March 31, 2000
                                    --------------------- ---------------------
                                     Carrying    Market    Carrying    Market
                                      Amount     Value      Amount     Value
                                    ---------- ---------- ---------- ----------
                                                  (In thousands)

Held-to-maturity:
  U.S. Treasury and federal agency
   securities...................... $2,945,415 $2,996,471 $5,200,882 $5,025,562
  Other securities.................  1,308,143  1,331,382  1,387,016  1,356,160
  State, county and municipal
   securities......................    342,177    358,377    381,312    374,726
                                    ---------- ---------- ---------- ----------
                                    $4,595,735 $4,686,230 $6,969,210 $6,756,448
                                    ========== ========== ========== ==========
Available-for-sale:
  U.S. Treasury and federal agency
   securities...................... $3,502,255            $5,067,236
  Other securities.................    815,316               833,896
  State, county and municipal
   securities......................    108,145                73,829
                                    ----------            ----------
                                    $4,425,716            $5,974,961
                                    ==========            ==========

--------
NOTES:
1. The weighted average remaining life, which reflects the amortization on
   mortgage related and other asset-backed securities, and the weighted
   average yield on the combined held-to-maturity and available-for-sale
   portfolios at March 31, 2001, were approximately 4.4 years and 6.70%,
   respectively. Included in the combined portfolios was $7.3 billion of
   mortgage-backed securities. The weighted-average remaining life and the
   weighted-average yield of mortgage-backed securities at March 31, 2001,
   were approximately 4.1 years and 6.68%, respectively. The duration of the
   combined portfolios, which considers the repricing frequency of variable
   rate securities, is approximately 2.6 years.
2. The available-for-sale portfolio included net unrealized gains of $94.8
   million and unrealized losses of $227.2 million at March 31, 2001 and 2000,
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   respectively.

                  Table 8--Other Interest-Bearing Liabilities

                                                                March 31
                                                          ---------------------
                                                             2001       2000
                                                          ---------- ----------
                                                             (In thousands)

Other borrowed funds:
  Short-term bank notes.................................. $  150,000 $  550,000
  Treasury, tax and loan notes...........................     25,000    608,083
  Term Federal Funds purchased...........................        -0-    540,000
  Commercial paper.......................................     12,686     10,821
  Other short-term debt..................................     46,277    132,615
                                                          ---------- ----------
    Total other borrowed funds........................... $  233,963 $1,841,519
                                                          ========== ==========
Other long-term debt:
  6.45% Subordinated Notes Due 2018...................... $  303,398 $  303,896
  6.125% Subordinated Notes Due 2009.....................    174,531    174,387
  6.75% Subordinated Debentures Due 2025.................    149,920    149,902
  7.75% Subordinated Notes Due 2004......................    149,710    149,618
  7.25% Senior Notes Due 2006............................     99,637     99,548
  6.875% Subordinated Notes Due 2003.....................     49,934     49,895
  6.625% Subordinated Notes Due 2005.....................     49,749     49,709
  Other long-term debt...................................      8,196      3,958
  Statement 133 valuation adjustment.....................     18,505        -0-
                                                          ---------- ----------
    Total other long-term debt........................... $1,003,580 $  980,913
                                                          ========== ==========
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                      Table 9--Capital Amounts and Ratios

                                                         March 31
                                             ----------------------------------
                                                   2001              2000
                                             ----------------  ----------------
                                               Amount   Ratio    Amount   Ratio
                                             ---------- -----  ---------- -----
                                                  (Dollars in thousands)

Tier 1 capital:
  AmSouth................................... $2,569,961  7.69% $2,850,335  7.68%
  AmSouth Bank..............................  3,256,881  9.74   3,419,621  9.23
Total capital:
  AmSouth................................... $3,724,657 11.14% $4,037,456 10.88%
  AmSouth Bank..............................  3,937,527 11.77   4,083,113 11.02
Leverage:
  AmSouth................................... $2,569,961  6.72% $2,850,335  6.59%
  AmSouth Bank..............................  3,256,881  8.53   3,419,621  7.92
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

   The information required by this item is included on page 15 of Part 2.
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.

                                    PART II

                               OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

   Several of AmSouth's subsidiaries are defendants in legal proceedings
arising in the ordinary course of business. Some of these proceedings seek
relief or damages that are substantial. The actions relate to AmSouth's
lending, collections, loan servicing, deposit taking, investment, trust, and
other activities.

   Among the actions which are pending against AmSouth subsidiaries are
actions filed as class actions. The actions are similar to others that have
been brought in recent years against financial institutions in that they seek
punitive damage awards in transactions involving relatively small amounts of
actual damages. A disproportionately higher number of the lawsuits against
AmSouth have been filed in Mississippi relative to the amount of deposits held
by AmSouth in Mississippi. In addition, lawsuits brought in Alabama and
Mississippi against AmSouth and other corporate defendants typically demand
higher damages than similar lawsuits brought elsewhere. Legislation has been
enacted in Alabama that is designed to limit the potential amount of punitive
damages that can be recovered in individual cases in the future. However,
AmSouth cannot predict the effect of the legislation at this time.

   It may take a number of years to finally resolve some of these legal
proceedings pending against AmSouth subsidiaries, due to their complexity and
for other reasons. It is not possible to determine with any certainty at this
time the corporation's potential exposure from the proceedings. At times,
class actions are settled by defendants without admission or even an actual
finding of wrongdoing but with payment of some compensation to purported class
members and large attorney's fees to plaintiff class counsel. Nonetheless,
based upon the advice of legal counsel, AmSouth's management is of the opinion
that the ultimate resolution of these legal proceedings will not have a
material adverse effect on AmSouth's financial condition or results of
operations.

Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K

Item 6(a) -- Exhibits

   The exhibits listed in the Exhibit Index at page 26 of this Form 10-Q are
filed herewith or are incorporated by reference herein.

Item 6(b) -- Reports on Form 8-K

   No reports on Form 8-K were filed by AmSouth during the period January 1,
2001 to March 31, 2001.

                                      24
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                                   SIGNATURES

   Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, AmSouth
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

                                                   /s/ C. Dowd Ritter
May 14, 2001                              By: _________________________________
                                                      C. Dowd Ritter
                                                  Chairman, President and
                                                  Chief Executive Officer

                                                  /s/ Donald R. Kimble
May 14, 2001                              By: _________________________________
                                                     Donald R. Kimble
                                                 Executive Vice President,
                                                 Chief Accounting Officer
                                                      and Controller
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                                 EXHIBIT INDEX

   The following is a list of exhibits including items incorporated by
reference.

  2 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated May 31, 1999 (1)

  3-a Restated Certificate of Incorporation of AmSouth Bancorporation (2)

  3-b By-Laws of AmSouth Bancorporation

  10-a Amendment Number One to the AmSouth Bancorporation Supplemental
     Retirement Plan

  10-b Amendment of Merger of First American Corporation Supplemental
     Executive Retirement Program

  15 Letter Re: Unaudited Interim Financial Information

                               NOTES TO EXHIBITS

(1) Filed as Exhibit 2.1 to AmSouth's Report on Form 8-K filed June 8, 1999,
    incorporated herein by reference.
(2) Filed as Exhibit 3.1 to AmSouth's Report on Form 8-K filed October 15,
    1999, incorporated herein by reference.
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Credit Facility � On December 23, 2005, Emerson entered into a $45.0 million Revolving Credit Agreement with
Wachovia Bank. The loan agreement provides for a $45.0 million revolving line of credit for revolving loans subject
to individual maximums which, in the aggregate, are not to exceed the lesser of $45.0 million or a �Borrowing Base� as
defined in the loan agreement. The Borrowing Base amount is established by specified percentages of eligible
accounts receivables and inventories and bears interest ranging from Prime (8.25% as of June 30, 2007) plus 0.00% to
0.50% or, at Emerson�s election, the London Interbank Offered Rate (�LIBOR� which was 5.32% as of June 30, 2007)
plus 1.25% to 2.25% depending on excess availability. Pursuant to the Revolving Credit Agreement, Emerson is
restricted from, among other things, paying certain cash dividends, and entering into certain transactions without the
lender�s prior consent and is subject to certain leverage financial covenants. Amounts outstanding under the loan
agreement will be secured by substantially all of Emerson�s tangible assets.
          During the quarter ended September 30, 2006, Emerson amended its Revolving Credit Agreement with
Wachovia Bank, National Association to finance its working capital requirements through October 31, 2006, primarily
to ensure funding of the promotional item purchases totaling over $30.0 million. Under this amendment, Emerson�s
line of credit was increased to $53 million from $45 million for this period, and its revolver commitments, letters of
credit and inventory borrowing bases were increased. Emerson did not utilize the additional available funds during the
amendment period, and this amendment expired at October 31, 2006.
          At June 30, 2007, there were no borrowings outstanding under the facility. The effective interest rate on such
borrowings was 8.25% at June 30, 2007.
          As of June 30, 2007, the carrying value of this credit facility approximated fair value.
     As a result of the related party transactions entered into between Emerson and affiliates of Grande described in
Note 7, Emerson may have been deemed to be in breach of certain covenants contained in Emerson�s credit facility,
including a covenant restricting Emerson from lending money and from entering into related party transactions
without the consent of its lender. The lender under the credit facility agreed to waive such breaches and Emerson and
the lender negotiated an amendment to the credit facility. Under the amendment, (i) Emerson granted the lender a
security interest in the $23 million Note and the Guaranty referred to in Note 7, (ii) a failure (following a 15 day cure
period) by the borrowers to make payments to Emerson as required by the terms of the Note

13
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would be deemed a default under the credit facility, (iii) the number of field audits by the lender was increased from
two to three each year and (iv) Emerson was required to pay $125,000 to the lender in connection with the
amendment. All amounts due under the $23 million Note were repaid in full as of June 3, 2007. As of August 14,
2007 the amendment fee of $125,000 was repaid by Capetronic to Emerson.
NOTE 9 � LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
     The Company is not a party to, and none of its property is the subject of, any pending legal proceedings other than
routine litigation that is incidental to its business.
Item 2. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition
     The following discussion of our operations and financial condition should be read in conjunction with the Financial
Statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
     In the following discussions, most percentages and dollar amounts have been rounded to aid presentation.
Accordingly, all amounts are approximations.
Forward-Looking Information
     This report contains forward looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
     Forward-looking statements include statements with respect to Emerson�s beliefs, plans, objectives, goals,
expectations, anticipations, assumptions, estimates, intentions, and future performance, and involve known and
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, which may be beyond Emerson�s control, and which may cause
Emerson�s actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from future results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements.
     All statements other than statements of historical fact are statements that could be forward-looking statements. You
can identify these forward-looking statements through Emerson�s use of words such as �may,� �will,� �can,� �anticipate,�
�assume,� �should,� �indicate,� �would,� �believe,� �contemplate,� �expect,� �seek,� �estimate,�
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�continue,� �plan,� �project,� �predict,� �could,� �intend,� �target,� �potential,� and other similar words and expressions of the future.
These forward-looking statements may not be realized due to a variety of factors, including, without limitation:
� the loss of any of our key customers or reduction in the purchase of our products by any such customers;

� Our inability to maintain effective internal controls or the failure by our personnel to comply with such internal
controls;

� the failure to maintain our relationships with our licensees and distributors or the failure to obtain new
licensees or distribution relationships on favorable terms;

� our inability to anticipate market trends, enhance existing products or achieve market acceptance of new
products;

� our dependence on a limited number of suppliers for our components and raw materials;

� our dependence on third party manufacturers to manufacture and deliver our products;

� the seasonality of our business, as well as changes in consumer spending and economic conditions;

� the failure of third party sales representatives to adequately promote, market and sell our products;

� our inability to protect our intellectual property;

� the effects of competition;

� changes in foreign laws and regulations and changes in the political and economic conditions in the foreign
countries in which we operate;

� conflicts of interest that exist based on our relationship with Grande;

� the outcome of the Audit Committee�s review of our related party transactions and internal controls;

� changes in accounting policies, rules and practices; and

� the other factors listed under �Risk Factors� in our Form 10-K, as amended, for the fiscal year ended March 31,
2007 and other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the �SEC�).
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     All forward-looking statements are expressly qualified in their entirety by this cautionary notice. You are cautioned
not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this report or the
date of the document incorporated by reference into this report. We have no obligation, and expressly disclaim any
obligation, to update, revise or correct any of the forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information,
future events or otherwise. We have expressed our expectations, beliefs and projections in good faith and we believe
they have a reasonable basis. However, we cannot assure you that our expectations, beliefs or projections will result or
be achieved or accomplished.
Company Filings
               We make available through our internet website free of charge our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, amendments to such reports and other filings made by us with the
SEC, as soon as practicable after we electronically file such reports and filings with the SEC. Our website address is
www.emersonradio.com. The information contained in this website is not incorporated by reference in this report.

Results of Operations
               We operate in one segment, the consumer electronics segment, as presented in the following Management�s
Discussion and Analysis.
               The following table summarizes certain financial information for the three month period ended June 30,
2007 (fiscal 2008) and the three month periods ended June 30, 2006 (fiscal 2007) (in thousands):

Three Months Ended
June 30

2007 2006
(Unaudited)

Net revenues $52,688 $55,241

Cost of sales 45,248 47,840
Other operating costs 1,796 1,599
Selling, general and administrative costs 4,977 5,207
Non-cash compensation costs 79 105

Operating income 588 490

Interest income, net 233 105

Income before income taxes taxes 821 595
Provision for income taxes 379 14

Net Income $ 442 $ 581
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Net Revenues � Net revenues for the first quarter of fiscal 2008 were $52.7 million as compared to $55.2 million for
the first quarter of fiscal 2007, a decrease of $2.5 million or 4.5%. Net revenues are comprised of Emerson® branded
product sales, themed product sales and licensing revenues. Emerson® branded product sales are earned from the sale
of products bearing the Emerson® or HH Scott® brand name; themed product sales represent products sold bearing a
certain theme or character; and licensing revenues are derived from licensing the Emerson® and HH Scott® brand
names to licensees for a fee. The decrease in net revenues was comprised of:
i) Emerson® branded products sales of $48.7 million in the first quarter of fiscal 2008 compared to $51.4 million

in the first quarter of fiscal 2007, a decrease of $2.7 million, or 5.3%, primarily resulting from decreased sales
volumes in audio product lines and Ipod® compatible product category, partially offset by an increase in the
microwave ovens category;

ii) Themed product sales of $2.2 million in the first quarter of fiscal 2008 compared to $2.3 million in the first
quarter of fiscal 2007, a decrease of $119,000, or 5.2%, primarily due to the discontinuance of Nickelodeon®
themed products, partially offset by start-up sales of Mattel® themed products;

iii) Licensing revenues of $1.7 million in the first quarter of fiscal 2008 compared to $1.5 million in the first
quarter of fiscal 2007, an increase of $176,000, or 11.7% primarily due to the commencement of several new
licensing agreements in the first quarter of fiscal 2008; and

iv) In fiscal 2007 Emerson charged agent fees of $85,000, or 0.2% of net revenue, to Sansui Sales PTE, Ltd and
Akai Sales PTE, Ltd, both of which are related parties to Emerson, for assistance in procuring their product.
See Note 7 �Related Party Transactions�. No related party revenue was recorded in the three months ending
June 30, 2006.

Cost of Sales � In absolute terms, cost of sales decreased $2.6 million, or 5.4%, to $45.2 million in the first quarter of
fiscal 2008 as compared to $47.8 million in the first quarter of fiscal 2007. Cost of sales, as a percentage of net
revenues, was 85.9% in the first quarter of fiscal 2008 as compared to 86.6% in the first quarter of fiscal 2007. Cost of
sales as a percentage of sales revenues less license revenues decreased to 88.8% in the first quarter of fiscal 2008 from
89.1% in the first quarter of fiscal 2007. The decrease in cost of sales in absolute terms was primarily related to the
decrease in sales volume. The decrease in cost of sales as a percentage of net revenues and in absolute terms resulted
from a decrease in inventory reserves and royalty expense offset by an increase related to reserves for sales returns.
The decrease in inventory
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reserves resulted from the reduction of inventory levels of a discontinued themed-product line, which were fully
reserved in our previous quarter; however, there was also an offsetting impact on margins for this themed-product line
as a consequence.
Gross profit margins continue to be subject to competitive pressures arising from pricing strategies associated with the
price categories of the consumer electronics market in which we compete. Our products are generally placed in the
low-to-medium priced category of the market, which has a tendency to be highly competitive.
Other Operating Costs and Expenses � As a result of a shift away from direct import sales, other operating costs and
expenses as a percentage of net revenues were 3.4% in the first quarter of fiscal 2008 and 2.9% in the first quarter of
fiscal 2007. In absolute terms, other operating costs and expenses increased $197,000, or 12.3%, to $1.8 million for
fiscal 2008 as compared to $1.6 million in fiscal 2007. The increase in absolute terms was the result of increased
warehousing and brokerage costs.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses (�S,G&A�) � S,G&A, as a percentage of net revenues, were relatively
unchanged at 9.4% in the first quarter of fiscal 2008 as compared to the first quarter of fiscal 2007. S,G&A, in
absolute terms, decreased $209,000, or 4.0%, to $5.0 million in the first quarter of fiscal 2008 as compared to
$5.2 million for the first quarter of fiscal 2007. The decrease in S,G&A in absolute terms between the first quarter of
fiscal 2008 and 2007 was primarily due to severance pay in the first quarter of the prior fiscal year of $300,000, a gain
on the sale of marketable securities of $205,000, a decrease in accounts receivable reserves of $233,000, and a
decrease in variable selling expenses of $106,000 offset by an increase in salaries and bonuses of $460,000,
professional fees of $139,000, and trade show expenses of $109,000.
Non Cash Compensation � Non cash compensation relates to stock options expense associated with the adoption of
SFAS 123R �Share-Based Payments.� Stock based costs decreased to $79,000 (0.1% of net revenues) in the first quarter
of fiscal 2008 compared to $105,000 (0.2% of net revenues) in the first quarter of fiscal 2007.
Interest Income, net � Interest income, net, included $163,000 interest income on a note receivable from a related party.
See Note 7 � �Related Party Transactions.� As a result, interest income, net, increased $128,000, or 121.9%, to $233,000
(0.4% of net revenues) in the first quarter of fiscal 2008 from $105,000 (0.2% of net revenues) in the first quarter of
fiscal 2007. The increase was primarily attributable to the related party interest income as well as money market
account interest.
Provision (benefit) for Income Taxes � Our provision for income taxes, which primarily represents the deferred tax
charges associated with our profits in the United States, resulted in a provision of $379,000 for the three months ended
June 30, 2007, or 0.7% of net revenues, as compared to
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a provision of $14,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2006, or less than 1% of net revenues.
Net Income- As a result of the foregoing factors, net income amounted to $442,000 (0.8% of net revenues) for the first
quarter of fiscal 2008 as compared to $581,000 (1.0% of net revenues) in the first quarter of fiscal 2007.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
     As of June 30, 2007, we had cash and cash equivalents of approximately $23.2 million, compared to approximately
$15.3 million at June 30, 2006. Working capital was $67.2 million at June 30, 2007 and March 31, 2007. The increase
in cash and cash equivalents of approximately $7.9 million was primarily due to increases in cash provided by
operating activities, partially offset by cash used by financing activities, as described in the following paragraphs.
     Operating cash flow provided by continuing operating activities was approximately $23.9 million for the three
months ended June 30, 2007, resulting from the repayment to Emerson of financing provided to an affiliate in the
prior fiscal year (see Note 7 � �Related Party Transactions�), primarily offset by growth in inventory and accounts
receivable in the first quarter of fiscal 2008 as well as their asset allowances. Current payables increased $20.1
million, which is related to inventory growth.
     Net cash used by investing activities was $126,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2007 and resulted primarily
from purchases of tooling by a foreign subsidiary related to sourcing of product, computer equipment, and
improvements in one of our warehouses.
     Net cash used by financing activities was $2.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2007, resulting
primarily from repayments of outstanding loans of a foreign subsidiary. While cash used for the financing of
inventory purchases has been repaid in the current quarter, cash was also utilized for payments on certain equipment
leases which have been capitalized and the mortgage of a foreign subsidiary.
     On December 23, 2005, we entered into a $45.0 million Revolving Credit Agreement with Wachovia Bank. This
credit facility provides for revolving loans subject to individual maximums which, in the aggregate, are not to exceed
the lesser of $45.0 million or a �Borrowing Base� as defined in the loan agreement. The Borrowing Base amount is
established by specified percentages of eligible accounts receivables and inventories and bears interest ranging from
Prime plus 0.00% to 0.50% or, at our election, the London Interbank Offered Rate (�LIBOR�) plus 1.25% to 2.25%
depending on excess availability. Pursuant to the loan agreement, we are restricted
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from, among other things, paying certain cash dividends, and entering into certain transactions without the lender�s
prior consent and are subject to certain leverage financial covenants. Borrowings under the loan agreement are secured
by substantially all of our tangible assets.
     At June 30, 2007, there were approximately $24.6 million of letters of credit outstanding under this facility. There
were no borrowings outstanding at June 30, 2007 under this facility. At June 30, 2007, we were in compliance with
the covenants on our credit facilities.
     Our foreign subsidiaries maintain various credit facilities, aggregating $17.5 million, with foreign banks consisting
of the following:
� two letter of credit facilities totaling $10.0 million which are used for inventory purchases; and

� two back-to-back letter of credit facilities totaling $7.5 million.
At June 30, 2007, our foreign subsidiaries pledged approximately $3.0 million in certificates of deposit to these banks
to assure the availability of the $17.5 million credit facilities. The compensating amount of $3.0 million in cash is
legally restricted from use for general business purposes. At June 30, 2007, there were approximately $4.0 million of
letters of credit outstanding under these credit facilities.

Short-Term Liquidity. Liquidity is impacted by our seasonality in that we generally record the majority of our
annual sales in the quarters ending September and December. This requires us to maintain higher inventory levels
during the quarters ending June and September, therefore increasing the working capital needs during these periods.
Additionally, we receive the largest percentage of product returns in the quarter ending March. The higher level of
returns during this period adversely impacts our collection activity, and therefore our liquidity. Management believes
that continued sales margin improvement and the policies in place for returned products should continue to favorably
impact our cash flow. In the three months ended June 30, 2007, products representing approximately 35% of net
revenues were imported directly to our customers. This contributes significantly to Emerson�s liquidity in that this
inventory does not need to be financed by us.
Our principal existing sources of cash are generated from operations and borrowings available under our revolving
credit facilities. As of June 30, 2007, we had $36.6 million of borrowing capacity available under our $45.0 million
revolving credit facilities, as there were $24.6 million of letters of credit outstanding, and no outstanding loans. In
addition, at March 31, 2007, we had $17.5 million of letter of credit facilities, of which approximately $13.5 million
was available. We believe that our existing sources of cash, including cash flows generated from operations, will be
sufficient to support our existing operations over the next 12
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months; however, we may raise additional financing, which may include the issuance of equity securities, or the
incurrence of additional debt, in connection with our operations or if we elect to grow our business through
acquisitions.
     The following summarizes our obligations at June 30, 2007 for the periods shown (in thousands):

Payment due by period

Less than
More than

5

Total 1 year 1 � 3 years
3 � 5
years years

Notes and mortgages payable $ 549 $ 74 $ 148 $ 148 $ 179
Capital lease obligations 248 76 144 28 �
Lease-related party 102 102 � �
Leases- non-affiliate 4,792 1,436 2,587 769 �

Total $5,691 $1,688 $2,879 $ 945 $ 179

               There were no material capital expenditure commitments and no substantial commitments for purchase
orders outside the normal purchase orders used to secure product as of June 30, 2007.
               Emerson has contracted to sell its office location in Macao to a non-affiliated buyer for approximately
$2.0 million. Emerson has received a deposit of approximately $300,000 from the buyer and paid a commission to
Vigers Hong Kong Ltd, a property agent and subsidiary of Grande. See Note 7 � �Related Party Transactions.� The date
scheduled for closing the sale is September 27, 2007.
Critical Accounting Policies
               For the three month period ended June, 2007, there were no significant changes to our accounting policies
from those reported in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007.
Inflation, Foreign Currency, and Interest Rates
               Neither inflation nor currency fluctuations had a significant effect on our results of operations during the first
quarter of fiscal 2008. Our exposure to currency fluctuations has been minimized by the use of U.S. dollar
denominated purchase orders. We purchase virtually all of our products from manufacturers located in China.
               The interest on any borrowings under our credit facilities would be based on the prime and LIBOR rate. We
believe that given the present economic climate, interest rates, while expected to rise, are not expected to increase
significantly during the coming year.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
     There have been no significant changes from items disclosed in Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31,
2007.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures
(a) Disclosure controls and procedures.

During fiscal 2007, our management, including the principal executive officer and principal financial officer,
evaluated our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934) related to the recording, processing, summarization and reporting of
information in our reports that we file with the SEC. These disclosure controls and procedures have been designed
to ensure that material information relating to us, including our subsidiaries, is made known to our management,
including these officers, by other of our employees, and that this information is recorded, processed, summarized,
evaluated and reported, as applicable, within the time periods specified in the SEC�s rules and forms. Due to the
inherent limitations of control systems, not all misstatements may be detected. These inherent limitations include
the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of simple
error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion
of two or more people, or by management override of the control. Our controls and procedures can only provide
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the above objectives have been met.

Based on their evaluation as of June 30, 2007, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have
concluded that, for the reasons set forth below under �Changes In Internal Control Over Financial Reporting�; our
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934) were not effective to reasonably ensure that the information required to be disclosed by us in the
reports that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms.

(b) Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

Emerson has operated for many years under a system of internal controls governing the purchase and sale of
inventory and the use of its credit facilities to support its working capital needs. This system was designed in
order to insure participation by and coordination among
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employees involved in each of the major functional areas of Emerson, namely sales, procurement and finance both
in the United States and in its Asian offices.

The process begins with a monthly sales meeting in the United States chaired by the President of Sales and attended
by sales, treasury, sales planning and production scheduling personnel. At this meeting, sales projections, pipeline
and forecasts for all customers and for all models are reviewed and the foundation for the Monthly Buy Package is
established. Subsequent to the monthly sales meeting, a Monthly Buy Package is developed, including a schedule of
production needs by month, model and quantity. This package is forwarded to the Director of Sales and the Director
of the Corporate Treasury and, when approved, forwarded to the Macao office.

Experienced personnel in Macao then review and combine all buy packages received and schedule letters of credit
and on-account buys with manufacturers covering production for the month necessary to fill outstanding orders and
the likely needs of customers on a timely basis. The report from Macao is then sent for final approval to the
Director of the Corporate Treasury and the Treasurer. This system of internal controls provides that no letter of
credit may be authorized for issuance and no open account production is permitted to begin until this final approval
is received.

Once approved by Treasury, the package is sent back to the Macao office for execution of the buy transactions.
Orders are placed and letters of credit are issued as needed. The Macao office produces and forwards to the
Treasury and Finance Departments a Daily Activity Report which includes, among other things, letter of credit
number, dollar amount, model number, manufacturer and quantity produced. All information on the Daily Activity
Report should be able to be traced back to and tie in with the original approved Buy Package. This information
becomes the basis on which Emerson�s cash and credit line are managed on a daily basis.

Emerson�s primary domestic bank is notified of each letter of credit presented for payment and, when paid, the
applicable item is removed from the Daily Activity Report. In summary, this system, which was developed over
many years, was intended to ensure that every major function within the firm participates at every stage of the
purchase, sale and finance process and that there centralized and continuing monitoring of the Company�s liquidity
position.

In two transactions described in Note 7 (Related Party Transactions) our financial statements included in this report
on Form 10-Q, Emerson�s internal control process was bypassed. In the transaction involving the 42� plasma
televisions, purchase orders were issued, letters of credit were authorized and funds were advanced as a deposit with
Capetronic, an affiliate of Grande, with only minimal involvement from the Treasury, Sales or Finance Departments
under Emerson�s system of internal control. In addition, the distributor to
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which Emerson sold the television sets remitted approximately 25% of the monies due to Capetronic rather than to
Emerson which then received the funds at a later time. Documentation of the entire transaction was also deficient.

The same infirmities (other than the payment by the distributor to Capetronic rather than Emerson) are present in
the transactions involving the H.H. Scott LCD sets. In addition, there is virtually no documentation available to
Emerson setting forth its participation in the transactions beyond the detail information set forth in the issued
Letters of Credit. However, the available information shows that some of the Company�s credit was utilized to fund
transactions for the benefit of Grande affiliates and in which Emerson then had no financial interest whatsoever.

As described under Note 7 to our financial statements, during the quarter ended December 31, 2006, we and
affiliates of Grande entered into a number of related party transactions that resulted in loans and letters of credit
under our credit facility being issued for the benefit of affiliates of Grande. These loans were (i) subject to a
repayment schedule that commenced on April 1, 2007 and ended on June 3, 2007 as set forth in the Note and
(ii) guaranteed by Grande. All obligations under the Note were satisfied by June 3, 2007. The Company�s Audit
Committee conducted an initial review of these transactions and concluded that these financing transactions (i) were
not made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral and return on investment, as those
prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with unrelated persons, and (ii) involved more than the normal
risk of collectibility. In addition, the review of the transactions revealed material weaknesses in the Company�s
internal controls. The deficiencies that were uncovered related to (i) one or more senior managers failing to follow
the Company�s existing internal controls over purchases and sales of inventory and utilization of the Company�s
credit facilities and (ii) the lack of documentation related to such related party transactions. These events have also
raised concerns about the Company�s overall control environment. Although such events may not result in any
adjustment to the Company�s financial statements, such events reflect material weaknesses with respect to the
Company internal controls.

The Company�s Audit Committee is continuing its independent review into certain related party transactions entered
into by the Company, including its subsidiaries, with affiliates of Grande from December 2005 to the present, and
internal controls related to such transactions.

As part of the Company�s remedial actions, on February 20, 2007, the Board of Directors appointed a committee of
the Board of Directors comprised of Adrian Ma, the Company�s Chief Executive Officer, Greenfield Pitts, the
Company�s Chief Financial Officer, Michael A.B. Binney, the Company�s President � International Operations, and
Eduard Will, the Company�s President � North American Operations, to internally review and approve all related
party transactions in an amount in excess
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of $500,000. Following review and approval by this newly formed committee, all such related party transactions are
required to be reviewed and approved by the Company�s Audit Committee.

     Except as set forth above, there have been no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting that occurred
during our last fiscal quarter to which this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q relates that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial reporting.

PART II � OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings
          The Company is not a party to, and none of its property is the subject of, any pending legal proceedings other
than routine litigation that is incidental to its business.
Item 1A. Risk Factors
          There were no changes in any risk factors previously disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K, as
amended, for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007.
ITEM 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.
Share Repurchases:
          For the quarter ended June 30, 2007, we did not repurchase any shares under Emerson Radio Corp.�s common
stock share repurchase program. The share repurchase program was publicly announced in September 2003 to
repurchase up to 2,000,000 shares of Emerson�s outstanding common stock. Share repurchases are made from time to
time in open market transactions in such amounts as determined in the discretion of Emerson�s management within the
guidelines set forth by Rule 10b-18 under the Securities Exchange Act. Prior to the June 30, 2007 quarter, the
Company repurchased 1,267,623 shares under this program. As of June 30, 2007, the maximum number of shares that
are available to be repurchased under Emerson Radio Corp.�s common share repurchase program was 732,377. No
shares have been repurchased under the program since June 14, 2005.
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ITEM 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.
     (a) None
     (b) None
ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.
None
ITEM 5. Other Information.
None
ITEM 6. Exhibits.
31.1 Certification of the Company�s Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted

pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

31.2 Certification of the Company�s Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

32 Certification of the Company�s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

* filed herewith
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SIGNATURES
     Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

EMERSON RADIO CORP.
           (Registrant)  
/s/ Adrian Ma

Date: August 14, 2007 Adrian Ma
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Greenfield Pitts

Date: August 14, 2007

Greenfield Pitts
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting
Officer)
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